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1. Name of Property
historic name Bayview Hotel '
othar names/site number  Anchor House ) ] N

2. Location

streat & number 8041 Soquel Drive LI not for publication
city, town___Aptos U Jvicinity
state__California code CA county Santa Cruz code (087 . zip code 95003

3. Classltication

Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
D(] private building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
(] pubtic-local [ district 1 buildings
l:] public-State D site sites
[:] public-Federal D structure ! structures

D object ' objects

1 1 Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
NA listed in the National Register ___Q

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hersby centify that this
nomination Urequest for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
er of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

the prop?‘gjm S L_:]does not meet the National Register criteria. DSee continualion sheet.
_ . V a ’ﬂ 12,1 972

Signature of cenitying otficial Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property Dmeels [_—_]does not meet the National Register criteria. [:]See continuation sheet.

Signature of commaenting or other official Date

State or Federul agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
1, hereby, certity that this propenty is:

%tered in the Nationa!l Register. '
[] see continuation sheet. _aﬂmulﬁl dv Q(M’ _31!0 laz
Ddalormined aligible for the National
Register. D See continuation sheet.

determined not eligible for the
National Register.

E removed from the National Ragister.
other, (explain:)

(’vi‘»ignmum ol tha Keeper Date of Action



6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Domestic/Hotel : Domegecic/Hotel

7. Description

Architectural Classification Materials (enter categories from instructions)
(enter categories from instructions)

v foundation Concrete
Jlare-Vrrnrian/Tralianate walls Wood/Weatherboard
roof Wood/Shake
other

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

The Bayview Hotel is an imposing three story building that dominates the surrounding small
commercial district of Aptos Village both by its size and its stately Italianate style.
The arrangement of windows, dormers and brackets is extremely orderly on all sides, giving
the building a dignified appearance from any view.

The walls of the first two floors are covered with shiplap siding, finished with quoins at
all corners. A porch extends across the entire front (southern) facade and wraps around
half of the eastern side as well. Originally open, the porch was partially enclosed with
- glass around 1946; its original chamfered posts and decorative scrollwork remain intact.

A shallow course of platform stairs runs the full length of the porch. . The porch is
topped with a scrollwork balustrade. Entrance to the hotel is through two doors at either
end of this facade. (Originally there were three identical panelled doors with transoms
above; two of these now fall within the enclosed porch, but remain intact.) The first
floor windows are tall 2/2 double hung, with decorated lintel and surround.

Windows on the second floor repeat 'the tall 2/2 shape of the first floor, but are topped
with triangular pediments supported by brackets. Setting off the second floor from the
mansard roof is a boxed cornice and frieze; the frieze decorated with panels and substantial,
regularly spaced brackets. Wooden letters attached to the frieze spell Bay View Hotel on

the south and west sides.

The mansard roof that comprises the third floor is covered with wood shakes, as is

the hipped roof above. Projecting from the third floor mansard on all sides are gabled
dormers with pediments, and 2/2 double hung windows as on the second floor. The north face
of the mansard has four flush windows of various shapes as well. A very simple pipe
railing, installed after 1946, runs around the perimeter of the mansard roof. Historic
photographs and illustrations indicate that the mansard was originally topped with a
wooden balustrade; a tall cupola with bellcast mansard, cresting and flagpole rose

from the center. The removal of the cupola appears to have occured between 1896 and

1918. The hipped roof, added at that time, has two squat hipped dormers on the south side.

The north side of the hotel is the “service' side, with a small back porch similar in
construction to the front. Overgrown utility sheds project at the northwest side; a
one-story cement block aadition with shed roof and metal windows has been added at the
north east corner. Between them is a simple patio of relatively recent origin.

In front of the hotel is a hug magnolia tree which contributes to the well-established
atmosphere. In the landscaped area 1mmediacely to the west is a recently-constructed
gazebo of wood and lattice.

The Bayview Hotel was moved in 1946 approximately 60 faat to (] see continuation sheet

its current site. The orientation of the hotel to the town, street and railroad as recorded
in aerial photographs was not alitered, and the Bayview Hotel remains the most significant
landmark of Aptos Village as it has for over 100 years.



8. Statement of Significance
Centitying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:

- : D nationally D slatewide locally

Applicable National Register Criteria [X]A [ 18 [X]c []pD

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA k18 [Jc [Jo [Je [Jf [la

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Entertainment/Recreation 1878-1919 1878

Cultural Affiliation
NA

Significant Person Architect/Builder
NA Doyle and Company

State significance of property, and justity criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

SUMMARY: The Bayview Hotel represents a type of construction that occurred during a

period of economic development throughout Santa Cruz County in the 1870s as rail lines

were extended to once-remote areas, leading to parallel expansion of both tourism and
commerce. Joseph Arano, already a 'successful merchant, chose the Aptos location
specifically because of the newly-established rail comnection. The hotel was designed to
serve a "first class" clientele of travelers, business visitors, and well-to-do vacationers,
all of which were being attracted to the area. Two other comparable hotels were built in the
area around the same time, but these no longer exist. Because of its quality design and
construction, its size in relation to adjoining buildings, and its funccion as a hub of
social activity, the Bayview Hotel was from the beginning a focus point for the community.
Although the hotel fell into a period of disuse between the two wars, at a time when

the county's economy was virtualy stagnant, it has in recent years revived to play its
historic role.

[:fﬂs« continuation sheet
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[C]see continuation sheet
Previous documentation on file (NPS): :

[:]prelammary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) Primary location of additional data:
has beaen requested : [C] state historic preservation office
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Dpreviously determined eligible by the National Register [:] Federal agency
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10._Geographical Data
Acreage of property __1.J_acres
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DSee continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description

The nominated property occupies county parcel #41-011-31 located in the community of Aptos.
This parcel measures approximately 100' x 300' fronting on Soquel Drive, with a 20'
easement extending from the northeast corner to Trout Gulch Road.

f:] See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

The boundary includes the entire parcel on which the Bayview Hotel is located.
The boundaries encompass the historic resource and its immediate setting.

[)see continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By
namenitle _Doxeen Ferguson, Cynthia Mathews, Micki Ryan

organization _Santa Cruz County Historical Trust date 9-30-89
street & number __L18 Cooper Street telephone _408=425-2540

city or town __Santa Cruz state __CA zip code 93060
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_ Local Historical Context

The area of central coastal California that was to be politically defined
as Santa Cruz County has consistently attracted settlement by its natural
resources. Abundantly endowed with copiously flowing freshwater streams,

' loamy bottomlands, heavily forested hills, subsurface mineral deposits, and

. diverse maritime resources, the area attracted a series of prehistoric
settlers from 12,000 BP. The well favored area was selected as a Spanish
mission site in 1791, and as one of only three Alta California pueblos,
Villa de Branciforte, in 1796. By 1810 the mission at Santa Cruz had
profoundly disrupted pre-contact settlement patterns through depletion of
the native local population, while the mission's limited subsistence agri-
culture and grazing economy had little impact on the natural resources.
Secularization of mission lands under the Mexican political regime brought
1ittle change in broad patterns of land use, and repopulation by Mexican
settlers never reached the numbers estimated in local residence prior to
missionization. The richness of the region did not escape the notice of
entrepreneurial foreigners, who were quick to manipulate restrictive Mexi-
can land laws to their advantage.

The Gold Rush brought tens of thousands to California, and many of those
seekers recognized the potential for reward in agricultural, industrial and
land speculation ventures. With the passage of United States land redis-
tribution laws in 1851, a new era of concentrated settlement and resource
use began, and at this time Santa Cruz County was created as a political
entity.

The earliest American development in the new County took place within
agricultural floodplains or in the forested hills around major rivers,
creating landings, ports and shipping wharves strategically located around
Monterey Bay. Ffrom the 1850s to the 1870s the valleys were a sea of grain
in summer, and a quagmire of interlocking sloughs in winter. As
bottomlands were drained and rivers leveed or bridged, a narrow gauge rail
system was developed by private investors in the area's land speculation
and industrial enterprises. The local rail system linked communities,
provided connections with spur lines into the mountain lumber camps, and
most importantly met the national rail system with its market contacts in
the south county. ~

The 1870s and 1880s were boom times for the County, marked by the rapid
development of labor intensive agricultural, forest, maritime and mineral
industries. During this period the landscape was reorganized into

economically stratified communities along primary transportation routes, surrounded

by well spaced farmsteads; industrial sites such as mills and factories
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were located along the major rivers; and temporary camp communities moved
from canyon to canyon in the mountains. By the mid 1890s each of these
activities had left the indelible mark of their presence in the form of
settiement patterns and place names; domestic, commercial, industrial,
public and recreational architectural forms; ethnic enclaves; and the
beginnings of polarization of political alliances and resource bases in the
“north" and "south" county.

As the county emerged from the widespread economic recession of the 1890s,
which had been exacerbated locally by profit-driven depletion of the area's.
natural resource base, a new industry emerged in the promotion of tourism.
Always recognized as a place of retreat and restorative leisure by leading
families from the San Francisco Bay area, the county's natural attributes
were touted to a new market as the idea of Everyman's vacation spot.

Grand hotels were joined by tent camps, while the lumber camp spur lines
were rejuvenated to carry the adventurous into the mountains, and an elec-
tric trolley system carried guests to the seashore. Casinos, dance pavil-
jons and bath houses were erected at the shoreline, pushing the fishing
industry into ethnic and geographic enclaves. A preservation ethic was
born as excursions revealed the beauty of the remaining redwood forests and
shoreline marshes to the city dwellers. The automobile soon overtook rail
as the favored mode of transportation, giving rise to a sprinkling of en-
route communities supported by traveler services.

The post World War II era brought renewed agricultural and food processing
industries to the south county, widening the schism between the stable
agriculturai south county and the more heavily populated, tourism dependent
north county. Today, residential infill with its attendant services and a
burgeoning high technology industry blue the distinctions created by late
nineteenth century settlement processes, but the landscape retains a visi-
ble memory of its history. Historical resources representing each of the
chronological periods and activities described above were identified in a
1987 Historical Resources Inventory for the unincorporated county areas,
and are summarized here:

A) Prehistoric to early mission era, 12,000 BP - 1810 AD:

Organized villages, resource camps, shrines, trade and communication
routes; represented in archaeological distribution and place names.

(B) Frontier settlement, subsistence agriculture and grazing, early
industries, 1797 - 1850:

Mission architecture and outpost buildings, hacienda style ranchsteads
with associated laborer villages, townhouses and commercial buildings,
sawmills and flouring mills. Activities represented in adobe archi-
tecture, wood frame architecture, foundation ruins, place names.

Sl T W T S S B ST gt s .
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(C) Commercial agriculture, extractive industries, manufacturihg, resource
processing, trade and shipping, community development, 1850 - 1880:

Special function industrial architecture of wood frame, mortared
stone, brick and iron; domestic and commercial architecture reflecting
period styles interpreted by local carpenters; farmsteads of vernacu-
lar construction; small hotels; village and community landscape organ-
jzation; wharf and rail depot and terminus structures. Activities
represented in landscape remnants, agriculture buildings, wood frame
and brick domestic architecture, wood frame, brick and stone industri-
al and commercial buildings, depots and depot sites, wharf remnants
and sites, place names.

(D) Commercial agriculture and horticulture, commercial lumbering, extrac-
tive industries, dairying, manufacturing, packing and bottling, rail
transportation and trade, recreation, community development, 1875 -
1895.

Ethnic communities, company camps, laborer housing, stratified commu-
nity development with architecture reflecting influence of period
styles using standard decorative elements and local archi-
tect/builders, large hotels and resorts, country estates, special
function architecture for industries and manufacturing, rail depots
and terminals. Activities represented by architectural constructions
of wood frame, stone, brick, and iron; transportation and communica-
tion routes; social service architecture; recreation sites; community
social and political organization.

(E) Promotion of tourism, expansion of transportation system, development
of transportation strip communities, polarization of economic bases,
1890 - 1940:

Day visitor facilities, recreational services, publicly owned nature
reserves, public works facilities and services, conversion of country
estates to apartment housing, packing and processing industrial
plants, in addition to continued activities and use of sites and
facilities from previous era. Activities represented by recreation
and amusement structures; multi-unit domestic architecture; residen-
tial infill; camp and recreation facilities; public transportation,
communication, water and power system facilities; fair-weather cottage
canstruction; in addition to domestic, public, and commercial struc-
tures of recognized architectural style rendered by professional
architects.

(F) Post-war mass housing, high-technology industries, residential housing
replacing agricultural lands, increased polarization of economic base
and multi-cultural community, 1940 - 1960.
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Tract domestic architecture; clustered services away from town centers; industrial

park development with tilt-up construction; continued application of formal architectura.
style in domestic, commercial and public architecture; expansion of publicly funded
preserves and recreation sites., Activities represented by structures of wood

frame, concrete, stone, brick, post and adobe, steel frame; concrete bridges,
transportation routes.

Site Context:

The Bayview Hotel represents context D in chronological and land use setting. Its
architectural and cultural significance continued into context E as an active contributor to

the tourism industry.
History:

An Aptos correspondent to the Santa Cruz Sentinel wrote on March 27, 1875, "The engine is
here. It crossed the Aptos creek on lastSaturday afternoon for the first time. Although
the present engine is of rather a diminutive pattern, nevertheless it will bring important
changes to our flourishing village.'" And change it did.

By 1879 Wallace Elliott observed, '"The twenty miles of narrow gauge railroad from the

Pajaro Valley to the Bay of Monterey at Santa Cruz has been in operation about eighteen
months, and has wonderfully quickened the growth of the town. It connects with the Southern
Pacific Railroad at Pajaro, and acts as a feeder to that line. . . The railroad, by giving
the means of rapid communication with San Francisco, and all parts of the State and the
East, has called attention to the town and valley."

Establishment of the line encouraged expansion of lumbering operations throughout the Aptos
hills. The numerous mills along Valencia Creek and Aptos Creek now had an efficient
transportation system to reach larger markets throughout the state, where their high grade
lumber was in great demand. At the same time, agriculture was a developing economy in the
area, with a need for quick, reliable transport to distant markets.

But certainly the most noticeable demand for hotel space was that created by the emerging
tourist industry. The fabulous Aptos Hotel built by sugar-baron Claus Spreckles in 1874
had established the community as a fashionable destination for wealthy vacationers.
Promotions for the resort mention its elegantly furnished rooms, grounds and recreational
facilities, magnificent panoramic views, nearness to the long safe beach, and also note
that "Aptos 1is very easy of access. The cars of the Southern Pacific Railroad Company
make daily trips connecting the narrow~gauge road at Pajaro, which passes within a short
distance of the hotel."

During this period in the mid 1870s, Jose Arano had already established himself as a success-
ful merchant in the town of Aptos. A native of France who had reached California in 1852,
Arano married a daughter of Californio Rafael Castro in 1862 and established his business

in Aptos. Described as intelligent, multi-lingual, an astute businessman, genial and well-
respected, Arano established his store and post office as a principal focus for the town.
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Perceiving the potential impact of the new railway on the town's economy, Arano began
in 1874 to plan for expansion of his business at a location right next to the train line.
The building was completed in 1878, and an account written the following year states:

"This fine hotel building, known as the Anchor House was erected by Joseph Arano, at the
Aptos depot on the Santa Cruz Railroad, and about one hundred yards from the beach, on

a nice level plateau, between two of the finest trout streams in the State. The house
contains, on the first floor, one fine store, Post Office and bar-room. The hotel proper
contains 28 fine, large sunny rooms, all of which arein elegant order. The grounds contain
one and one-half acres of land, with good outbuildings, and plenty of good mountain water.
The house is new and elegantly finished. It is in every respect a first-class hotel. Our
illustration shows the situation of this fine property close to the railroad, with a view
of the hills in the immediate rear. Attached to the hotel is a fine yard and garden, with
arbors and fountains."

The name of the hotel was changed within a few years to the Bay View Hotel. Its best years
came during the period of the 1880s and 1890s. During this time the Loma Prieta Mill

on Aptos Creek became one of the largest lumber operations in the state, contributing to

a thriving local economy. The personal estates of Claus Spreckles and his brother-in-law
Henry Mangels drew frequent parties of distinguished visitors to the area. By 1896 Spreckles
had torn down his own hotel for the expansion of his estate, and a contemporary account
notes, "The principal hotel is owned and kept by the Aranos, whose Spanish dinners are
famous." Famous guests included Lillian Russell, King Kalakaua and many European visitors.

Arano (by this time known as Joe or Joseph) and his daughter Amelia continued to run the
hotel until 1914; Amelia then ran the hotel with the help of two nieces until 1919. The
advent of World War I and changing fashions led to a decline in fortunes for the hotel,
and in 1919 it was closed up. A service wing of the unused hotel was destroyed by fire in
1928, a great personal blow to Arano who was 94 years old at the time.

In 1942, Arano's heirs sold the hotel to Fred Toney. Toney's original plan was to demolish
the hotel for the lumber, but coincidentially a local utility crew needed short term

housing and so Toney was convinced to reopen the hotel. 1In 1946 Toney decided to move the
hotel about 60 feet north and west back from the intersection, leaving that land available
for other commercial uses. The move was done by Toney himself with a crew of local

workers. At this time modern plumbing and electric lights were installed, but care was taken
to preserve the marble fireplaces and other interior features. Other than partial enclosure
of the porch, very few alterations were made. The hotel retained its historic proximity and
southerly orientation to the train tracks. Toney reopened the hotel and restaurant, which
was operated by his family until 1973, At that time, the business itself was leased, while
ownership of the property remained in the hands of Toney's daughters. A 1975 fire destroyed
the hipped roof, which was rebuilt, The business was sold again in 1982 and 83, at which tim
the modern wrought iron fence was installed. In 1989 the business and property were sold
again to a local partnership which intends to restore the building to its original use

as quality accommodations for visitors.
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Photo Log

All photos by Bill Burkhart, Augqust, 1989

Negative location: County of Santa Cruz Planning Department
701 Ocean Street, Room 406B
Santa Cruz, CA 95060-4071

1. Looking northwest

2. Looking northwest

3. Looking east, showing enclosed porch housing dining room

4. Looking south, showing north facade (rear of property)

5. Looking north, showing detail of south (principal) entrance

6. Verandah Restaurant, restored bar area with rosette overhead

7. Guest fireplace

8. Antique lighting fixture and plaster rosette in parlor

9. Interior didning area with marble fireplace

10. Interior view of front entryway

11. Newel post of interior stairway

12. Interior dining area with 10 foot ceilings and marble fireplace

13. Exterior verandah dining area



